

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION**[Docket No. 22–05]****Foreign Tire Sales, Inc., Complainant, v. Evergreen Shipping Agency (America) Corp.; as agent for Evergreen Line, Evergreen Group d/b/a Evergreen Line, Respondent; Notice of Filing of Complaint and Assignment**

Notice is given that a complaint has been filed with the Federal Maritime Commission (Commission) by Foreign Tires Sales, Inc., hereinafter “Complainant”, against Evergreen Shipping Agency (America) Corp.; as agent for Evergreen Line, Evergreen Group d/b/a Evergreen Line (Evergreen), “Respondents”. Complainant alleges that Respondent Evergreen Shipping Agency (America) Corp. is a corporation existing under the laws of the State of New Jersey and agent for Evergreen, a vessel-operating common carrier.

Complainant alleges that Respondents violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c), 41104(a)(2), 41104(a)(5), 41104(a)(9), and 41104(a)(10) with regard to refusal to provide space on their vessels. The full text of the complaint can be found in the Commission’s Electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/22-05/>.

This proceeding has been assigned to Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding office in this proceeding shall be issued by March 20, 2023, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by October 4, 2023.

Served: March 18, 2022.

William Cody,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2022–06210 Filed 3–23–22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730–02–P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION**[Docket No. 22–07]****Acme Freight Services Corp., Complainant v. Total Terminals International, Respondent; Notice of Filing of Complaint and Assignment**

Notice is given that a complaint has been filed with the Federal Maritime Commission (Commission) by ACME Freight Services Corp., hereinafter “Complainant”, against Total Terminals International, “Respondent”. Complainant alleges that Respondent is a Delaware corporation and marine terminal operator (“MTO”).

Complainant alleges that Respondents violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c) and 46 CFR 545.4 and 545.5 with regard to assessing

demurrage charges against containers, including containers that are subject to a governmental hold and therefore unavailable for pickup. The full text of the complaint can be found in the Commission’s Electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/22-07/>.

This proceeding has been assigned to Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding office in this proceeding shall be issued by March 21, 2023, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by October 25, 2023.

Served: March 21, 2022.

William Cody,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2022–06245 Filed 3–23–22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730–02–P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION**[Docket No. 22–06]****Royal White Cement, Inc., Complainant v. CMA CGM S.A. and CMA CGM (America) LLC, Respondent; Notice of Filing of Complaint and Assignment**

Served: March 21, 2022.

Notice is given that a complaint has been filed with the Federal Maritime Commission (Commission) by Royal White Cement, Inc., hereinafter “Complainant”, against CMA CGM S.A. and CMA CGM (America) LLC, “Respondents”. Complainant alleges that Respondent CMA CGM S.A. is a French corporation or similar form of entity, and that Respondent CMA CGM (America) LLC is a New Jersey limited liability company. Complainant alleges that Respondents are common carriers.

Complainant alleges that Respondents violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c) with regard to refusal to accept bookings and provide equipment to accomplish such bookings pursuant to an agreed service contract. The full text of the complaint can be found in the Commission’s Electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/22-06/>.

This proceeding has been assigned to Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding office in this proceeding shall be issued by March 21, 2023, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by October 5, 2023.

William Cody,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2022–06233 Filed 3–23–22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730–02–P

FEDERAL MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION SERVICE**Privacy Act of 1974; System of Records**

AGENCY: Federal Mediation & Conciliation Service.

ACTION: Notice of a new system of records.

SUMMARY: The Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) uses this system to process requests for arbitration panels, including payment for requests, to process annual fees for each arbitrator, to maintain a roster of qualified, private labor arbitrators to hear disputes arising under collective bargaining agreements, and provide fact finding and interest arbitration.

DATES: This system of records will be effective without further notice on April 25, 2022 unless otherwise revised pursuant to comments received. New routine uses will be effective on April 25, 2022. Comments must be received on or before April 25, 2022.

ADDRESSES: You may send comments, identified by FMCS–0008, by any of the following methods:

- *Mail:* Office of General Counsel, 250 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20427.
- *Email:* register@fmcs.gov. Include FMCS–0008 on the subject line of the message.
- *Fax:* (202) 606–5444.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Arthur Pearlstein, Director of Arbitration Services, at apearlstein@fmcs.gov, (202) 606–8103, or mail, The Office of Arbitration Services, FMCS, 250 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20427.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The enabling legislation for FMCS provides that “the settlement of issues between employers and employees through collective bargaining may advance by making available full and adequate governmental facilities for conciliation, mediation, and voluntary arbitration . . .” 29 U.S.C. 171(b). Pursuant to the statute and 29 CFR part 1404, FMCS has long maintained a roster of qualified, private labor arbitrators to hear disputes arising under collective bargaining agreements and provide fact finding and interest arbitration. The existing regulation establishes the policy and administrative responsibility for the FMCS roster, criteria, procedures for listing and removing arbitrators, and procedures for using arbitration services.

SYSTEM NAME AND NUMBER:

FMCS–0008 Arbitration Records.